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generation of the performance measures. Where data do 

not exist, the business requirements are formalized for data 

needed before any changes are made to existing systems or 

before new systems are developed.”
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have advanced the state of climate protection planning 

(for example, merging private utility data with public 

transportation data), putting the effort into creating such 

public-private initiatives for freight activity would be well 

worth it.  
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better data and freight transportation models” on pages 112 

and 113, would be enhanced by recommending a specific 

mechanism for a public-private data warehouse.

There are precedents for the federal use of private data, 

ranging from the climate protection activities of the 

�.�A�T�I�O�N�A�L���#�L�I�M�A�T�E���!�S�S�E�S�S�M�E�N�T���0�R�O�G�R�A�M���T�O���A���V�A�R�I�E�T�Y���O�F��

�R�I�S�K��R�E�D�U�C�T�I�O�N���I�N�I�T�I�A�T�I�V�E�S���U�N�D�E�R�W�A�Y�����S�U�C�H���A�S���T�H�E���5�3�$�/�%��L�E�D��

�1�U�A�D�R�E�N�N�I�A�L���%�N�E�R�G�Y���!�S�S�E�S�S�M�E�N�T�	�����A�N�D���M�O�R�E���R�E�C�E�N�T�L�Y���T�H�E��

�C�O�O�P�E�R�A�T�I�V�E���D�E�V�E�L�O�P�M�E�N�T���O�F���T�H�E���,�O�C�A�T�I�O�N���!�F�F�O�R�D�A�B�I�L�I�T�Y��

�)�N�D�E�X���B�Y���T�H�E���#�E�N�T�E�R���F�O�R���.�E�I�G�H�B�O�R�H�O�O�D���4�E�C�H�N�O�L�O�G�Y���F�O�R���(�5�$��

�A�N�D���5�3�$�/�4�����.�#�&�2�0���2�E�P�O�R�T���������'�U�I�D�A�N�C�E���F�O�R���A���&�R�E�I�G�H�T��

�3�Y�S�T�E�M���$�A�T�A���!�R�C�H�I�T�E�C�T�U�R�E�����L�A�Y�S���T�H�E���G�R�O�U�N�D�W�O�R�K���F�O�R���S�U�C�H��

�A�N���I�N�I�T�I�A�T�I�V�E�����4�H�E���#�E�N�S�U�S���A�N�D���"�U�R�E�A�U���O�F���,�A�B�O�R���3�T�A�T�I�S�T�I�C�S��

offer an interesting model for dealing with confidentiality 

issues that was developed for their joint Local Employment 
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program.
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APPENDIX A:  
SUMMARY OF  COD METRICS

A. Local Economic Development

Specific Metric Further Description  
and Benchmarks 

Freight System 
Benefits Public Benefits References to Relevant Studies and 

Comparable Metrics 

1. Industrial Location Efficiency

a) Access to Multiple 
Modes of Freight 
Transportaton

Minutes required to drive 
a truck between industrial 
plants and freight facilities

Reduced first/last mile 
shipping costs 

Reduced air pollution, traffic 
congestion and public 
infrastructure costs

"SteSteele, Christopher W. Freight Facility 
Location Selection: A Guide for Public Officials. 
Vol. 13. Transportation Research Board, 2011. 
http://www.trb.org/Main/Blurbs/166143.aspx  
CS NS 47th St Study / CS NS 47th St Study"

b) Load 
Consolidation 
and Clustering 
Opportunities

Number of manufacturing, 
distribution, and logistics 
firms and jobs along a 
shared rail spur  or within a 
30-minute truck drive

Opportunities 
for load sharing 
or distribution\ 
consolidation services

Improved environment for 
business attraction\ retention 
& job creation

The Freight-Manufacturing Nexus: 
Metropolitan Chicago’s Built-in Advantage, 
August 2013. http://www.cmap.illinois.
gov/documents/10180/27283/Freight-
Manufacturing-Nexus-8-6-13-1.pdf/16f3459b-
05af-4eac-af71-f9a8f18f7bc2

c) Available 
Industrial District 
Land

Industrially zoned and 
previously used acreage 
that is vacant or severely 
under-utilized

Reduced first/
last mile shipping 
costs; increased 
reliability for on-time 
delivery; increased 
opportunity to serve 
manufacturers

Compact land use patterns 
that raise value of industrial 
properties, preserve open 
space, and reduce air 
pollution in the region

Site Selection Index from Center for 
Neighborhood Technology COD Optimizer™ 
used to assess site-specific data.  Previous 
studies include: Cargo-Oriented Development 
(COD) Analysis and Implementation, 
September 2013. http://www.cnt.org/media/
COD-AnalysisAndImplementation.pdf.; 
Center for Neighborhood Technology. West 
Cook County COD+TOD Report, October 
2012. http://www.cnt.org/media/CNT_
WestCookCountyCODTOD.pdf

d) Convenient 
Access for a Large 
Local Workforce

Number of area residents 
who can reach the site 
within 30 minutes via 
public transit or active 
transportation

Larger potential 
labor force; improved 
employee retention

Improved access to 
logistics/ industrial jobs, 
especially for workers with 
lower financial resources; 
reduced worker transport 
costs

Defined by CNT's Transit Access Shed Index: 
Population of the area that can be reached from 
the business location via public transit within 
60 minutes. See: H+T® Affordability Index 
Methodology.     http://htaindex.org/

e) Safe and 
Convenient Truck 
Access

Truck routes that connect 
expressway exits, freight 
facilities, and industrial 
plants; are free of 
infrastructure impediments; 
and pass entirely through 
industrial districts.

Enhanced community 
goodwill and reduced 
liability\ Efficiency in 
freight routing and 
improved utilization 
of assets

"Avoided exposure of 
sensitive populations to air 
pollution and risks to public 
safety;  
Reduced traffic congestion 
and air pollution"

National Center for Healthy Housing. Baltimore-
Washington Rail Intermodal Facility Health 
Impact Assessment, September 2013. http://
nchh.org//Portals/0/Contents/Baltimore-
Washington-Intermodal-Facility-HIA_Final-
Report.pdf.;National Gateway. http://www.
nationalgateway.org/news-resources/faq ; 
Federal Highway Administration. National 
Bridge Inventory. Provides GIS data on location 
and maximum vertical clearance needed on all 
bridges in the U.S. http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/
bridge/nbi.cfm

f) Acres of Location 
Efficient 
Industrial Land 
Redeveloped

Demonstrated capacity to 
resolve the challenges of 
redevelopment – including 
land assemby, brownfields 
remediation, building 
rehabilitation or clearance 
through public-private 
coordination

Realization of 
Industrial Location 
Efficiency Benefits; All 
of 1.a. – 1.e. benefits

Realization of Industrial 
Location Efficiency Benefits; 
All of 1.a. – 1.e. benefits

New Jersey Institute of Techology,”Brownfield 
Economic Redevelopment: Preparing Modern 
Intermodal Freight Infrastructure to Support 
Economic Revelopment” http://transportation.njit.
edu/nctip/final_report/BrownfieldsReport.pdf ; 
Chicago’s South Suburbs: Smart Growth in Older 
Communities http://www.transportchicago.
org/uploads/5/7/2/0/5720074/chandler-
mckinley_final.pdf
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A. Local Economic Development (continued)

Specific Metric Further Description  
and Benchmarks 

Freight System 
Benefits Public Benefits References to Relevant Studies and 

Comparable Metrics 

2. Job Creation and Career Development

a) Good Job 
Creation & 
Retention

Jobs with salares above 
regional median wage 
for the educational level 
required

High productivity 
through retention of a 
skilled workforce

Increased employment, 
household income, and 
market strength; reduction 
of poverty

Current Average Salaries: Bureau of Labor 
Statistics. Occupational Employment 
Statistics, 2014. http://www.bls.gov/oes/ ; 
Current Employment Conditions: US Census. 
Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 
2014. http://lehd.ces.census.gov/; Estimated 
Impact: Regional Economic Models, Inc. http://
www.remi.com/ ; Employment Opportunities: 
O*Net. http://www.onetonline.org/

b) Career 
Development

Number of workers in 
training for manufacturing/
logistics skill certifications

Capacity to meet 
future labor needs

Sustained skilled job growth Institute for Supply Management. http://www.
ism.ws/;Statements of corporate training 
programs, technical/community colleges, and 
certifying professional associations re capacity 
of training programs, e.g., training for Certified 
Product Technician (CPT) and Certified Logistics 
Technician (CLT) through the Manufacturing 
Skills Council, Commercial Driver’s License (CD) 
www.msscusa.org 

3. Worker Transportation Access Achieved

 Worker 
Transportation 
Access Achieved

Percentage of workers 
in a COD district who 
commute without driving 
alone

Larger labor force; 
Improved employee 
retention

Reduced household 
travel expense; Reduced 
traffic congestion, road 
maintenance costs, and air 
pollution

American Community Survey: Means of 
transportation to work by block group. http://
www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/

4. Public Cost Savings and Revenue Growth 

a) Infratructure Cost 
Savings

Road construction and 
maintenance dollar savings 
correlated to reductions in 
truck VMT

Reduced public 
infrastructure costs 
assigned to other 
projects, possibly 
public-private 
partnerships

Increased resources for 
public services and other 
investments

United States Government Accountability Office. 
A Comparison of the Costs of Road, Rail, and 
Waterways Freight Shipments That Are Not 
Passed on to Consumers, January 2011. http://
www.gao.gov/new.items/d11134.pdf.  Table 6, 
page 44.

b) Tax Base Growth Increase in assessed 
property values, purchases 
subject to sales tax, and 
corporate and employee 
income subject to tax

Improved long-term 
operating conditions 
and costs and 
established position 
to negotiate public-
private partnerships

Increased revenue to meet 
community obligations; 
Lower tax rates to attract\
retain businesses and 
residents

Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission. 
The Crescent Corridor Improving Lives and 
Livelihoods, 2009. http://www.dvrpc.org/
freight/pdf/2009-10-CrescentCorridor-Smith.
pdf: Cambridge Systematics. Public Benefits 
of Increased Intermodal Activity at the Norfolk 
Southern 47th Street Intermodal Facility in 
Chicago. Norfolk Southern.; Regional Economic 
Models, Inc. http://www.remi.com/
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B. Freight System Efficiency

Specific Metric Further Description  
and Benchmarks 

Freight System 
Benefits Public Benefits References to Relevant Studies and 

Comparable Metrics 

1. Truck & Freight System Productivity 

a) Reduction in Truck 
VMT Relative to 
Freight Tonnage & 
Value 

Change in light of relative 
efficiencies: Truck: 0.0160 
Gallons of Fuel per Ton-
Mile,14.24 Cents per Ton-
Mile; Rail: 0.0021 Gallons 
of Fuel per Ton-Mile, 2.35 
Cents per Ton-Mile

Reduced shipping 
costs

Reduced traffic congestion, 
infrastructure costs, and air 
pollution; Improved climate 
for business attraction, 
retention and job creation

US Department of Transportation. National 
Transportation Statistics, 2011: Table 4-5 Fuel 
Consumption by Mode of Transportation in 
Physical Unit.;http://www.rita.dot.gov/bts/sites/
rita.dot.gov.bts/files/publications/national_
transportation_statistics/html/table_04_05.
html; United States Government Accountability 
Office. A Comparison of the Costs of Road, Rail, 
and Waterways Freight Shipments That Are Not 
Passed on to Consumers, GAO Report (GAO-
11-134, Jan 26, 2011).http://www.gao.gov/new.
items/d11134.pdf

2. Travel Time & Reliability 

a) Travel Tme Average time to complete 
deliveries on a given route

Optimal utilization 
of assets, return on 
investment

Positive conditions to attract 
& retain investment, job 
creation & retention; area 
competitiveness

Rail\Truck firm schedules, e.g.:BNSF. Intermodal 
Schedules, 2014. http://www.bnsf.com/
customers/prices-and-tools/intermodal-
schedules/; Surface Transportation Board: Rail 
Service Perfomance Data Reporting – Weekly 
Service Update; http://www.stb.dot.gov/
railserviceissues.nsf?OpenDatabase&Start=1&C
ount=300&ExpandView

b) Reliability Percentage of shipments 
delivered on time. 95%+ 
industry standard

Capacity to 
support just-in-time 
manufacturing & 
distribution

Positive conditions to attract 
& retain investment, job 
creation & retention; area 
competitiveness

Anthony Hatch, "Ten Years After, The Second 
Intermodal Revolution" https://www.intermodal.
org/information/research/assets/tenyrsafter.
pdf; Surface Transportation Board: Rail Service 
Perfomance Data Reporting – Weekly Service 
Update; http://www.stb.dot.gov/railserviceissues.
nsf?OpenDatabase&Start=1&Count=300&Ex
pandView 

3. Efficiencies in Intermodal Drayage & Terminal Operations

a) Drayage Average truck VMT in trips 
to and from an intermodal 
terminal 

Reduced first\last mile 
travel costs; increased 
market for intermodal

Compact industrial 
development: investment & 
job creation\retention within 
established communities

ICF International, commissioned by the Federal 
Railroad Administration. “Comparative Evaluation 
of Rail and Truck Fuel Efficiency on Competitive 
Corridors,” November 2009, Exhibit 4-14, p. 75. 
Accessed October 9, 2015. https://www.fra.dot.
gov/eLib/details/L04317

b) Terminal Operations 

(1)  
Energy Efficiency 

Average fuel consumed 
per container moved 
through an intermodal 
terminal 

Reduced costs of 
intermodal shipping

Enhanced asset for business 
attraction\ retention; minimal 
negative environmental 
impact

Goodchild, Anne, J. McCall, John Zumerchik, 
and Jack Lanigan. “Reducing Train Turn Times 
with Double Cycling in New Terminal Designs.” 
Transportation Research Record: Journal of 
the Transportation Research Board 2238 
(December 1, 2011): 8–14

(2)  
Space Efficinency

Terminal footage required 
per container moved 
through an intermodal 
terminal 

Wide range of 
potential terminal 
locations, including 
urban sites

Compact industrial 
development: investment & 
job creation\ retention within 
established communities

Zumerchik, John, Jack Lanigan Sr., and 
Jean-Paul Rodrigue. “Incorporating Energy-
Based Metrics in the Analysis of Intermodal 
Transport Systems in North America.” 
Journal of the Transportation Research 
Forum 50, no. 3 (2011): 97
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B. Freight System Efficiency (continued)

Specific Metric Further Description  
and Benchmarks 

Freight System 
Benefits Public Benefits References to Relevant Studies and 

Comparable Metrics 

4. Right Sized Shipping 

a) Savings in 
shipping costs

Achieved through 
cooperation among 
shippers to optimize 
effiiciency in load size 

Reduced costs 
for smaller 
shippers, including 
manufacturers 

Supportive conditions for a 
broad range of businesses

“Sun-Maid Uses Consolidation to Drive a 62% 
Reduction in Outbound Freight Costs.” Kane Is 
Able, Inc. Accessed October 9, 2015, http://
www.kaneisable.com/sun-maid-case-study-
reduce-outbound-freight-costs; Harrington, 
Lisa H. “U.S.—Mexico Trade: Two-Way Traffic.” 
Inbound Logistics, January 2013. Accessed on 
October 9, 2015. http://www.inboundlogistics.
com/cms/article/us-mexico-trade-two-way-
traffic/
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C. Environmental Impacts

Specific Metric Further Description  
and Benchmarks 

Freight System 
Benefits Public Benefits References to Relevant Studies and 

Comparable Metrics 

1. Air Quality 

a) Levels of key 
greenhouse 
gases and criteria 
pollutants 

Carbon Dioxide, Carbon 
Monoxide, Nitrogen 
Oxide, Particulate Matter 

Healthy working 
environment, 
community good will, 
capacity to operate in 
an urban environment

Public health protection; 
Attractive community 
environment; Combat 
climate change

Transportation Energy Data Book, Oak Ridge 
Laboratory, Chapters 11 -12 

2. LEED Standards in Freight Facility Design 

a) Water Quality On-site absorption of 
storm water 

Attractive working 
environment, 
community goodwill, 
capacity to operate in 
an urban environment 

Attractive community 
environment, quality of life 

 U.S. Green Building Council. LEED® Green 
Building Rating SystemTM For Core and Shell 
Development Version 2.0, July 2006. http://
www.usgbc.org/Docs/Archive/General/
Docs1728.pdf. http://nssustainability.com/2014_
sustainability_report/NS_CR14_Full_Report.
pdf.

b) Noise Level Not to exceed 55 dBA Per 2.a. Per 2.a. Federal Transit Administration. Transit Noise and 
Vibration Impact Assessment, May 2006. http://
www.fta.dot.gov/documents/FTA_Noise_and_
Vibration_Manual.pdf

c) Lighting Not to exceed 20 
footcandles 

Per 2.a. Per 2.a. National Center for Freight & Infrastructure 
Research & Education. Getting the Goods 
without the Bads: Freight Transportation Demand 
Management Strategies to Reduce Urban 
Impact,2013  – Table 6

3. Regional Land Use

a) Intensive Use of 
Industrial Location 
Efficient Land 

(1) Percentage of acres 
in productive use (2) 
Number of jobs per acre

Reduced first\last 
mile costs, increased 
clustering and 
right size shipping 
opportunities 

Compact industrial 
development: investment & 
job creation\ retention within 
established communities

Mack, James. Brownfield Success Stories Case 
Histories and Lessoned Learned. New Jersey 
Institute of Technology. http://www.njit.edu/tab/
downloads/removing-barriers/Brownfield_
Success_Stories.pdf.

a) Preservation of 
Open Space

Percentage of regional 
acres in parks or protected 
open land

Community good will Enhanced quality of life National Recreation and Park Association, 
National Parkland Standards http://pgccreative.
temp-website.com/land_standards 
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D. Safety

Specific Metric Further Description  
and Benchmarks 

Freight System 
Benefits Public Benefits References to Relevant Studies and 

Comparable Metrics 

1. Adherence to Federal Safety Guidelines

a) Adherence to 
Trucking Safety 
Guidelines 

"Safety Measurement 
System" of the Federal 
Motor Carrier Safety 
Association 

Worker safety, 
insurance cost 
management, 
corporate citizenship

Enhanced public safety, 
quality of life

 "Safety Measurement System" of the Federal 
Motor Carrier Safety Associationhttps://csa.
fmcsa.dot.gov/about/basics.aspx 

b) Adherence to 
Railroad Safety 
Guidelines 

"Risk Reduction Program" 
of the Federal Railroad 
Administration 

Per 1.a. Per 1.a. "Risk Reduction Program" of the Federal Railroad 
Administration https://www.fra.dot.gov/Page/
P0049  

2. Local Safety Record Analysis  

a) Local Safety 
Records 

Comparison of local 
freight linked accidents, 
injuries, fatalities against 
federal statistics 

Per 1.a. Per 1.a. United States Government Accountability Office. 
A Comparison of the Costs of Road, Rail, and 
Waterways Freight Shipments That Are Not 
Passed on to Consumers, January 2011. http://
www.gao.gov/new.items/d11134.pdf.  Table 
8, page 49.; National Center for Freight & 
Infrastructure Research & Education. Getting the 
Goods without the Bads: Freight Transportation 
Demand Management Strategies to Reduce 
Urban Impact,2013  – Table 5http://www.ssti.
us/wp/wp-content/uploads/2013/10/Final-
FreightReport.pdf

3. Implimentation of “Positive Train Control” 

a) Implimentation 
of "Positive Train 
Control (PTS)" 

Percentage of railroad 
track in the region in which 
PTS has been installed

Critical Precaution 
against accidents, 
particularly 
derailment\ New 
infrastructure of fiber 
optic cable 

Critical Precaution against 
accidents, particularly 
derailment\ New 
infrastructure of fiber optic 
cable 

"Positive Train Control Information Summary", 
Federal Railroad Administration.,https://www.fra.
dot.gov/Page/P0152
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APPENDIX B:  
EXAMPLES OF INTERMODAL 

TERMINAL AND LINKED INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

# Project & Status Railroads Public\Private 
Partners

Freight Volume 
(Containers 
000s)

Job Creation (In 
terminal, industrial 
park & region)

Public Benefits

1 Virginia Inland Port (Front Royal, 
VA): Opened 1989. Studied 
2009 

NS Port of Virginia 34 (2008) 17 terminal, 8,000 
park (achieved)

5.4 M VMT reductions; 3,100 Tons 
of CO2 avoided annually, valued at  
$105,000 

2 Rickenbacker Intermodal 
Terminal (Columbus, OH): 
Opened 2012. Key component 
Heartland Corridor

NS Columbus Airport 
Authority, Duke 
Realty, City of 
Columbus 

150 (2012), 
capacity 
500,000

150 terminal, 
20,000 park & 
region (projected)

Heartland Corridor.  Per annum after 10 
years, 49 M VMT, $660M shipper costs, 
$2 M road maintenance, $2.45 M in 
accident costs avoided

3 Northwest Ohio Terminal  (NW 
terminus of National Gateway 
Corridor): Opened 2011

CSX NW Terminal largely 
CSX. Gateway 
Corridor 6 states and 
DC 

2,000  capacity 300 terminal 
(achieved)

Gateway Corridor over 30 years: 50,000 
jobs created, and 14 B truck VMT, 20 M 
tone CO2, $3.5 B shipper costs avoided.

4 Charlotte Intermodal (NC): 
Opened Dec 2013 (1 of 4 
terminals on Crescent Corridor 
opened within the last 18 
months)

NS City of Charlotte 200 157 terminal, 5,000 
park, 70,000 
region (projected)

Crescent Corridor. Per annum by 2030, 
eliminated or avoided: 1.3 M truck trips, 
$575 M traffic congestion costs, 169 M 
gallons of fuel, 1.9 M tons CO2. 

5 Alliance Global Logistics Hub 
(Forth Worth, TX): In operation 
since 1989

BNSF , 
UP

Hillwood 
Development, City of 
Ft. Worth

600 (2011). 
Capacity 2,000 

28,000  park, 
63,000 region 
(achieved)

 Generated more than $43 billion in 
economic impact, job anchor – created 
35,000 jobs and developed communities 
surrounding it. Designation as Foreign 
Trade Zone has kept companies from off-
shoring jobs.

6 Santa Teresa Intermodal 
Terminal (Las Cruses, NM 
Area): Construction completed 
2014 

UP Verde Realty, State of 
New Mexico, 

250 capacity 600 terminal 
(projected) 

 Projected overall economic impact of 
$500 million for New Mexico. Planned 
road infrastructure improvements will 
streamline and speed up freight border 
traffic. Expected to jump-start development 
in the region.

7 Logistics Park Chicago (Elwood, IL 
Chicago region): Opened 2004

BNSF CenterPoint 
Properties, Will 
County, State of IL 

800 (2010), 
capacity 1,000

8,000 park (60% 
achieved)

Redevelopment of a brownfield site 
to create jobs and alleviate freight 
congestion to access a strong local 
market.

8 Global IV, Joliet, IL Intermodal 
Terminal (Chicago region): Opened 
2011

UP CenterPoint 
Properties, Will 
County, State of IL 

500 (2012), 
Capacity 1,200

1,300 terminal, 
7,500 park & 
region (projected)

 Anchor job center, up gradation 
of surrounding roadways to direct 
intermodal traffic. Uses green 
technologies such as solar panels, use 
of wind generated electric power and 
electric cranes.

9 47th Street Intermodal Terminal 
(Chicago): Terminal expansion to be 
completed in 2015 

NS CREATE Partnership 480 (2011) , 
capacity 800

300 terminal 
(projected)

By 2022 per annum: 176 M less truck 
VMT resulting in shipper, congestion, 
fuel, emissions, and accident costs 
avoided totaling $118 M nationally, $15 
M in Chicago

10 Gateway Terminal (Memphis, TN): 
Property leased 2013, expansion of 
terminal built 2005 

CN Exeter Property 
Development

150 (2013) 300 
capacity

120 terminal, 5,000 
park (projected)

 Operated jointly by CN & CSX, the 
revised operation can handle 35 or 
more freight trains per day.
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# Project & Status Railroads Public\Private 
Partners

Freight Volume 
(Containers 
000s)

Job Creation (In 
terminal, industrial 
park & region)

Public Benefits

11 Memphis Intermodal Terminal 
(Lamar Avenue): Redeveloped 
2009

BNSF  275 (2013), 
capacity 1,000

100 terminal 
(achieved)

State of the art technology 
minimizes negative environmental 
impacts, anchors job center with 
>10,000 workers in depressed city 
neighborhood

12 Rossville Intermodal Terminal 
(Memphis area): Opened 2012

NS William Adair , CBRE, 
DeSoto County, MS

106 (2013), 
capacity 
327,000 

43 terminal, 6,200 
park & region 
(projected)

One of 4 terminals in the Crescent 
Corridor opened within the last 18 
months  

13 Central Florida Intermodal Logistics 
Center (State Road 60 in Winter 
Haven, Florida)

CSX Evansville Western 
Railway, CSX 
Intermodal Terminals 
Inc

300 1,300 terminal, 
7,500 park & 
region (projected)

 Anchor job center, up gradation 
of surrounding roadways to direct 
intermodal traffic. Uses green 
technologies such as solar panels, use 
of wind generated electric power and 
electric cranes.

14 Garrows Bend Intermodal 
Container Facility (end of 2015)

BNSF, 
CN, 
CSX, 
Kansas 
City 
Southern, 
Norfolk 
Southern

Alabama State Port 
Authority, R.T. Milord, 
USDOT TIGER 
Grant

800 (full build-
out)

351 direct jobs, 392 
induced/indirect 
jobs

20 acres of intermodal rail yard with 
two support tracks and one run-around 
track linked to five Class I railroads 
through a rail bridge. The terminal 
received a $12 million TIGER Grant 
in 2013. 

15 Florida East Coast Railways 
Intermodal Container Transfer 
Facility 

CSX, NS Broward County, 
State of Florida, FEC

450 11,687 direct jobs, 
210,000 jobs 
impacted in state

“FEC said the new facility will allow 
the company to build 9,000-foot unit 
trains within the facility without blocking 
any city streets, and will allow cargo 
to move through Port Everglades to 
Atlanta and Charlotte, North Carolina, 
in two days. Nashville and Memphis, 
Tennessee, can be reached in three 
days.”

16 Pittsburgh Intermodal Rail terminal 
(early 2017)

CSX McKees Rocks and 
Stowe Township, 
Allegheny County, 
Pennsylvania 
Transportation 
Assistance Program 
Grant

50 40 terminal, 40 
drayage jobs,100 
indirect jobs in the 
region, 9,000 
(statewide)

Utilizing CSX’S National Gateway 
project funding to create a highly 
efficient and environmentally 
friendly double-stack cleared rail 
corridor. Funding includes a $35 
million Pennsylvania Transportation 
Assistance Program Grant. 

17 Buckeye, Columbus, Ohio, CSX 360 5,907 jobs within 
3 miles

New crane technology enables 
efficient lifts within a smaller footprint 
(36 acres). The electric cranes 
produce zero emissions and generate 
minimal noise – they generate 
electricity that is returned to the grid.
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Examples 1, 2, 5, and 7: Christopher Steele, CWS Consulting Group, 
et al, NCFRP 13, “Freight Facility Location Selection: A Guide for Public 
Officials, Background Research Material”, 2011, supplemented with 
information from concerned railroad and project websites;  

Examples 2, 3: Mark Szakonyi,  “CSX, NS Take Differing Intermodal 
Strategies to Next Phase”, Journal of Commerce, January 24, 2014 , 
supplemented with information from concerned railroad and project 
websites;

Examples 2, 4, 6, 12: Chad Miller, Martin Lipinski, et al, “Job Creation 
Factors for Inland and Near Dock Intermodal Facilities”, research 
performed for the Mississippi Department of Transportation, http://www.
memphis.edu/ifti/pdfs/research_job_creation_factors.pdf; supplemented 
with information from concerned railroad and project websites; 

Example 8: Union Pacific web site for Global IV http://www.uprr.com/
customers/intermodal/intmap/global4.shtml 

Example 9: Cambridge Systematics, Inc., “Public Benefits of Increased 
Intermodal Activity at the Norfolk Southern 47th Street Intermodal Facility 
in Chicago” May 24, 2011, www.camsys.com 

Examples 10, 11, and 12: Conversations with Dan E. Pallme and Martin 
Lapinski of the Intermodal Freight Transportation Institute of the University 
of Memphis, along with site visits to the these 3 terminals, by David 
Chandler for the Center for Neighborhood Technology, supplemented by 
information from the concerned railroad websites  

Example 13: CSX Website “State-of-the-Art Terminal Begins Operations 
in Winter Haven”, http://www.csx.com/index.cfm/media/press-releases/
state-of-the-art-terminal-begins-operations-in-winter-haven/

Example 14: Stagl, Jeff “CSX focuses on three intermodal projects to 
prepare for traffic growth” http://www.progressiverailroading.com/
csx_transportation/article/CSX-focuses-on-three-intermodal-projects-
to-prepare-for-traffic-growth--42116

Example 15: Lavigne, Grace M. “Work beginning on intermodal facility to 
serve port of mobile”, American Association of Port Authorities - Request 
for Qualification: Phase I Garrows Bend Intermodal Container Transfer 
Facility (ICTF), Alabama State Port Authority - Grant Application for 
Capital Investment in Surface Transportation Infrastructure 

Example 16: Egan, Corianne “New intermodal facility opens at Port 
Everglades”, http://www.joc.com/port-news/us-ports/port-everglades/
new-intermodal-facility-opens-port-everglades_20140717.html

Example 17:  CSX Website: http://www.csx.com/index.cfm/media/
press-releases/csx-selects-mckees-rocks-and-stowe-township-for-new-
pittsburgh-intermodal-facility/ , Szakonyi, Mark, “CSX to give Pennsylvania 
shippers better intermodal access”: http://www.joc.com/rail-intermodal/
class-i-railroads/csx-transportation/csx-give-pennsylvania-shippers-
better-intermodal-access_20141024.html

Example 18: Center for Neighborhood Technology, “Creating Sustainable 
Economic Opportunity through Cargo-Oriented Development” August 
29, 2014
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